


OUR 
MISSION

OUR 
VISION

“We are just a bunch of passionate people 
committed to creating magical memories. We 
believe in doing almost anything to deliver 
your crazy ideas; bringing the best of the 
world to satisfy the imagination and beyond.”

“To be the region’s number one brand in 
delivering phenomenal experiences.”



1. Create phenomenal experiences
2. Deliver excellence through service
3. Challenge the industry through innovation & creativity
4. Be solution-oriented
5. Be self-motivated
6. Communicate with a positive, open & respectful attitude
7. Celebrate & support each other - one team, one family
8. Be accountable - accept responsibility
9. Exceed all expectations 
10. Always show up - committed, dedicated & professional
11. Be humble, compassionate & caring
12. Do the right thing, always
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Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Main Event Entertainment Group Limited (the 
“Company”) will be held at The Jamaica Pegasus Hotel, 81 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5 on Tuesday, 
July 27th, 2021 at 3:30 p.m., to consider, and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions:

1. RECEIPT OF AUDITED ACCOUNTS
To receive the Audited Accounts of the Company for 
the year ended 31 October 2020, together with the 
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Ordinary Resolution No. 1
ThAT the Audited Accounts of the Company for the 
year ended 31 October 2020, together with the 
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon be and 
are hereby adopted.’

2. RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
In accordance with Article 97 of the Company’s 
Articles of Incorporation, Mr. Solomon Sharpe and Mr. 
Richard Bair, retire from office by rotation and, being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.: 

Ordinary Resolution No. 2 (a)
‘THAT Mr. Solomon Sharpe be and is hereby re-
elected a Director of the Company’.

Ordinary Resolution No. 2 (b)
‘THAT Mr. Richard Bair be and is hereby re-elected a 
Director of the Company’.

3. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 
To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the 
remuneration of Directors.

Ordinary Resolution No. 3 (a)
‘THAT the amount shown in the Audited Accounts 
for the year ended 31 October 2020 as fees to the 
Directors for services as Directors, be and is hereby 
approved’. and 

Ordinary Resolution No. 3 (b)
“THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised to 
fix their remuneration for the ensuing year”.

4. RE-APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
AUDITORS 
To appoint the Auditors and authorise the Board of 
Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

Ordinary Resolution No. 4
‘THAT BDO Chartered Accountants having signified 
their willingness to serve, continue in office as 
Auditors of the Company pursuant to Section 154 of 
the Companies Act to hold office until the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting at a remuneration 
to be fixed by the Directors of the Company’.

Dated this 18th day of February, 2021

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

_________________________

Marvia Williams
Company Secretary

NOTE:A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him.  A proxy need not be a member of 
the Company. A form of proxy is enclosed and if it is used it should be completed in accordance with the instructions on the form and returned 
so as to reach the Registrar of the Company, Jamaica Central Securities Depository at 40 Harbour Street, Kingston, not less than forty-eight (48) 
hours before the time fixed for the meeting. It is expected that all shareholders who wish to attend the company’s AGM observe the Ministry 
of Health’s current  Covid 19 protocols .

NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report along with the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the year ended October 31, 2020.

Accounts
     
 2020 2019   
 $000 $000
Profit attributable to Stockholders (18,228) 97,336
Retained profits at beginning of year 475,186 395,850
Balance attributable to Stockholders 533,610 578,838
Dividends and distribution 27,001 18,000
  
Transfers, net Nil Nil  
Retained Profits at end of year 429,958 475,186

Directors
The Directors of the Company as at October 31, 2020 were: 
Solomon Sharpe  Executive Director 
Richard Bair  Executive Director
Donna Waithe  Executive Director
Harriet Maragh  Independent Director
Dr. Ian Blair  Independent Director   
hugh Graham  Independent Director
Tania Waldron-Gooden  Independent Director

The Board notes with regret the untimely passing of the former Chairman of the Company on 
January 3, 2021 and acknowledges his sterling leadership and contribution throughout his tenure.  
Dr. Ian Blair is the Acting Chairman of the Company.

In accordance with Article 97 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, Mr. Solomon Sharpe and 
Mr. Richard Bair, retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Auditors
BDO Chartered Accountants of 26 Beechwood Avenue, Kingston 5, Saint Andrew, will continue in 
office as Auditors in accordance with the provisions of Section 154(2) of the Companies Act. 

Dated February 18, 2021,
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

Marvia Williams
Secretary



Navigating 
the pandemic 
has presented 
extraordinary 
challenges for 
our business.  The 
Company has 
been forced to 
drastically modify 
its operating 
conditions since 
late March ”

“

6



Harriat (Harry) Maragh is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Lannaman and Morris. 
Mr. Maragh has worked in the local shipping company for over 20 years, having 
previously acted as Freight Sales Representative for both Hapag Lloyd and Harrison 
Line in Jamaica. He is also Chairman of the Kingston Port Workers Superannuation Fund 
and Metro Investments Limited and a Past President of the Shipping Association of 
Jamaica. His other associations include the Shipping Association of Jamaica, Shipping 
Association of Jamaica Property Limited, Seafreight Agencies Inc., ADVANTUM, 
National Cruise Council of Jamaica and Assessment Recoveries Limited. Mr. Maragh 
is a member of the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers. He has also been a lecturer in 
the Jamaica National Export Corporation (JNEC) training program for new employees 
in the shipping industry. Mr. Maragh attended Humber College of Applied Arts and 
Technology in Toronto, Canada.Harriat Maragh

Independent Non-Executive 
Director, Chairman

Solomon O. Sharpe is the founder and CEO 
of the Company. Mr. Sharpe spearheads the 
Client Relations, Business Development and
Product Diversification departments of the 
Company. Prior to founding the Company, he 
worked at Desnoes and Geddes and developed 
new approaches to event planning, marketing 
and promotion, focusing on sporting events 
including the Red Stripe Super Stakes, Red 
Stripe Cup Cricket, Red Stripe Bowl Cricket 
and the Red Stripe Cricket Mound and also, 
music events such as Reggae Sunsplash and 
Reggae Sumfest. Solomon is also Chairman of 
the Board of Directors for Supreme Ventures 
Racing & Entertainment Limited. 

Richard Bair currently serves 
as Chief Operating Officer of 
the Company. He is responsible 
for the day to day commercial 
and financial operations of the 
business, and has oversight 
of large-scale projects/events. 
Prior to forming the Company, 
Mr. Bair worked at Cable and 
Wireless, Porter Brothers, and 
his proprietary entertainment 
promotions business, RAS 
Promotions.

Donna Waithe has been a part of 
the Company since its inception 
in 2004. She has oversight and 
responsibility for Human Resource 
management and development, 
employee benefits, performance 
tracking, training, logistics, office 
management and public liability
insurance and compliance. 
She brings her considerable 
management experience gained 
at Air Jamaica prior to joining to 
the Company.

Solomon Sharpe
Chief Executive Officer

Richard Bair
Chief Operating Officer
and Company Secretary

Donna Waithe
Director of Human Resources, 

Development
and Administration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Dr. Ian Blair began his career as 
an aircraft mechanic with British 
West Indies Airlines (BWIA) and 
extended his professional career 
as a licensed aircraft engineer 
after completing further studies 
from B.O.A.C / B.E.A (British 
Airways) Aircraft Training College 
in London, England and the award 
of a civil aircraft engineer’s license 
from the Jamaican Civil Aviation 
Authority. 

Dr. Blair received a Bachelor of 
Science (Hons.) in Management 
Studies (UWI), MSc in Accounting 
(UWI) and a Ph.D. in Business 
Administration (Strategic 
Management) from Kennedy-
Western University. He previously 
held senior management positions 
as Vice President Maintenance 
and Technical Services at Air 
Jamaica, Senior VP Operations 
and Development, Port Authority 
of Jamaica. Since 2005, Dr. Blair 
has worked as a Management 
and Aviation consultant.

Mr. Hugh Graham Founded 
Paramount Trading (Jamaica)
Limited in 1991 and has been 
its Chief Executive Officer 
and Managing Director since 
February 1991. Prior to forming 
that company Mr. Graham was 
a sales agent for international 
chemical manufacturers and 
distributors May and Baker 
Limited and Rhone Poulenc Inc. 
Under his guidance Paramount 
Trading has grown considerably 
and is now a publicly traded 
company listed on the Junior 
Market of the JSE.

In addition to his role on the 
board of Paramount Trading, 
Mr. Graham has served as 
councillor of the St. Catherine 
Parish Council for the Lluidas 
Vale Division since 2007. he has 
also served on the Boards of the 
JUTC, Spectrum Management 
Authority, Ultimate Tyre 
Company, the National Water 
Commission and Rural Water 
Supply Limited.

Effective October 1, 2020, Tania Waldron-Gooden 
was appointed Deputy Chief Executive Officer of 
Caribbean Assurance Brokers Limited. She brings 
to the organization fourteen years of experience in 
areas such as Investment Banking, Research, New 
Product Development, Pension Fund and Portfolio 
Management. Tania Waldron-Gooden was previously 
the Director–Investment Banking and Executive 
Director at Mayberry Investments Limited Tania is 
the Mentor and Director of Main Event Entertainment 
Group and Express Catering Limited, and the Mentor 
for Derrimon Trading Company Limited and Caribbean 
Flavours and Fragrances Limited. She is also a Director 
of Chicken Mistress Limited and Island Grill Holdings 
Limited.

As the Mentor to various companies, she is responsible 
for providing the Board with support in establishing 
proper procedures, systems, and controls for its 
compliance with the Jamaica Stock Exchange Rule 
requirements for financial reporting, good corporate 
governance, and the making of timely announcements.  

Tania holds a Bachelor of Science degree (BSc. - Hons.) 
in Geology from the University of the West Indies. 
Tania also holds a Master of Business Administration 
degree (M.B.A) from the University of Sunderland in 
the U.K. Tania has completed the Jamaica Securities 
Course as well as the Canadian Securities Course 
administered by the Canadian Securities Institute. 

Tania Waldron – Gooden
Independent

Non–Executive
Director, Mentor

Dr. Ian Blair
Independent

Non-Executive
Director

Hugh Graham
Independent

Non-Executive
Director
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Richard Bair
Chief Operating Officer

Solomon Sharpe
Chief Executive Officer

Mellissa Tulloch
Strategy and Development 

Executive

Donna Hussey
Corporate Affairs Manager

Taniese Cross
Operations Manager - 
Kingston Showroom

Our management team comprises a group of innovative and experienced 
individuals with complimentary skills who are committed to the common 
purpose and goals of the company.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Sasha Forrester
Manager - Operations, 
Business Development 
and Optimization Unit  
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Donna Waithe
Director of Human 

Resources, Development
and Administration



Kim-Natalie Moodie
Commercial Operations 

Manager - Western Division

Elaine Maharaja-Rattray
Processes, Training & 
Development Manager

Glendon Phillips
Field Services Manager

Gregory Seymour
Finance Manager
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Harriat Maragh
November 12, 1949 - January 3, 2021 
The Board was saddened by the sudden 
passing of our beloved Chairman Mr. Harriat 
Maragh on January 3, 2021. “Uncle Harry” as 
he was affectionately called, was a dedicated 
advisor and trusted mentor to the company.  
The Main Event Entertainment Group profited 
greatly from his sterling leadership and the 
invaluable contribution made throughout his 
tenure. he will be greatly missed and forever 
remains in our hearts. 

11

TRIBUTE TO OUR 
CHAIRMAN
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MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS
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The 2020 financial year began well for the Company, 
with positive momentum building within the business. 
However, the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in the 
second quarter ultimately resulted in mandated curfews 
and extended lockdowns for the country.  

Navigating the pandemic has presented extraordinary challenges for 
our business.  The Company has been forced to drastically modify 
its operating conditions since late March, 2020.  Operations had 
to be quickly adapted to deal with the immediate and ongoing 
implications.

The company has since taken and continues to take significant 
measures to preserve cash and control costs including the 
following: 

• A suspension of non-essential operating expenditure, including 
marketing and promotional and travel and entertainment 
expenses; and where possible, reducing essential operating 
expenditures to minimum levels necessary while the ban on 
the entertainment sector which is one of our main revenue 

sectors, remains in place.
 

• The Deferment of all non-essential capital expenditure. 

• The implementation of measures to reduce staff 
costs, including a voluntary redundancy exercise. 

• Working with the company’s vendors and 
other business partners to manage 

expenses.
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ENTERTAINMENT SECTOR
The restrictive measures 
implemented globally to 
combat the spread of the 
Covid-19 pandemic have had 
a devastating impact on the 
entertainment, travel, and 
tourism industries.

Considering this, the company 
has been seeking opportunities 
for generating additional 
income from our other 
revenue streams, primarily 
through the expansion of our 
digital marketing and signage 
services.

Financial Performance
The Company’s financial results 
for the financial year ended 
31 October 2020 has been 
significantly impacted by the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

The financial performance in 
the second half of the year 
reflects the brunt of the impact.  
The Company has been 
grappling with unprecedented 
reductions in business activity.  
This has had a major impact 
on revenues, and in turn, net 
earnings for the financial year.

REvENUE
The COVID-19 pandemic and 
the associated restrictions on 
movement and gatherings 
adversely impacted the 
Company’s revenues for the year.  
The Company booked revenues of 
$1.046 billion 
compared to 
$1.799 billion 
in the prior 
year.  This 
represents 
a 42 per 
cent decline 
year over 
year.  As 
much as 85 
per cent of 
the revenues for the year booked 
during the first half of the fiscal 
year.  

Revenue from the Company’s 
audio and filming and 
entertainment and promotions 
operations recorded the most 
noticeable declines  at 45 and 44 
per cent, respectively.  Revenues 
from digital signage totaled $85 

million, down 
from $101 million 
in the previous 
financial year. M 
Style XP declined 
to $ 112 million 
from $160.7 
million in the 
previous year.  
The M Academy 
revenues totaled 
$ 4.2 million, 

presenting the contractual balance 
on an its inaugural arrangement 
secured in the prior year.

GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit margin of 
$481.9 million,  shows a 38 
per cent decline from the 
$ 776.7 million in the prior 
year.  Given a 42 percent 
decline, the decline in Gross 
profit was well managed 
and shows positive results of 
the continuing margin re-
alignment project which was 
ongoing since the prior year. 

OPERATING ExPENSES
Administrative and general 
expenses for the year total 
$484.807 million; down 27% 
from the $667.050 million 
recorded at the end of the prior 
year.  Total administrative and 
general expenses represent 46% 
of revenues, compared to 37% of 
revenues in 2019.

The income statement for the 
current year includes a $57.441 
million reduction in expected 
credit losses, calculated in 
accordance with IFRS 9.  This 
has aided in easing the impact 
of the revenue decline over the 
COVID-19 period.  This reversal 
of ECL compares to a $16.617 
million charge recorded in the 
prior year.

In addition, the application of 
the newly effective accounting 
standard on leases, IFRS 
16, brought changes to the 
classification and presentation 
on lease expenses, amortization 
costs and finance charges. In 
accordance with IFRS 16, an 
amortization charge of $20.669 
million has been recorded on 
Right of Use Assets (leased 



15

NET PROFIT 
The impact of the Covid19 pandemic was 
arguably most evident in the Company’s 
profitability.  A net loss of $18.227 million 
compares to net income of $97.336 million in 
2019.  Operating profit for the year of $5.007 
million compares to $120.013 million last year.

SHAREHOLDER’S EqUITY
Shareholder’s Equity totaled $578.8 million or 8 
per cent lower than a year earlier. The decline 
follows from a net loss for the current year; and 
reverses a 6.5 percent gain in the prior year.  In 
the year, the Company declared and paid $27 
million in dividends to its shareholders. 

TOTAL ASSETS
 Total assets of $854.120 million represents a 
17 per cent decline from $1,029.688 at the end 
of the 2019 year.  The Company has maintained 
a good asset base, despite suspending capital 
expenditure for much of the second half of the 
year and continuing depreciation throughout.  
Non-current assets now include $54.808 
million in Right of Use Assets, recognized in 
accordance with IFRS 16.  This is associated 
with the increased lease liabilities, totaling 
$56.903 million at reporting date.

Current assets show a 43 per cent decline from 
$380.535 million to $218.159 million, which 
is indicative of the reduction in revenues. The 
receivables decline of $198.833 million or 74 
per cent results from lower revenues in the 
second half; paired with strong collection efforts.  
With these efforts, cash and cash equivalents 

has increased by $64.841 million or 96 per 
cent; and cash flows from operations showed 
improvements for a second year; growing by 
22 per cent to $243.614 million from $199.800 
million.

assets); which are now reflected in the Company’s financial.  Given this new 
presentation requirement, depreciation, and amortization charges total $148.336 
million or 31 per cent of the total expenses for the year.  This compares to 
$116.909 million or 18% of total expenses in 2019.  Additionally, finance costs of 
$23.472 million for the current year includes $7.551 million re-classified (from rent) 
to lease related finance charges.   An overall net expense of $2.016 million has 
resulted from the IFRS 16 prescribed changes in classifications and presentation.
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OUTLOOK
Unfortunately, the entertainment industry remains 
predominantly dormant. We expect to experience 
continuing curtailments in entertainment activity, 
and this will continue to have an adverse impact 
on our financial performance. 

Nonetheless, management remains optimistic in 
the outlook for the medium to longer term.  We 
recognize that there is still a significant demand 
and now a yearning for leisure and entertainment. 
We are all committed to the journey toward 
recovery.  We anticipate that the recovery will be 
gradual and slow. 

The health and wellbeing of our employees, 
customers, and the community at large is very 
important to us. We will continue to work with 
the Government and health authorities to 
determine how we can safely re-open when it is 
appropriate to do so.

We will continue to operate within the constraints 
that we are faced with, while aiming to develop 
modified business models to navigate this 
environment.  We are actively seeking to identify 
ways to innovate and take advantage of scarce 
revenue opportunities. We have already reduced 
our cost base significantly and will assess, 
evaluate, and adjust on a continuous basis. We 
are focused on ensuring adequate liquidity is 
available to meet our obligations, and in the 
medium to long term, maintaining a strong 
balance sheet and maximizing sustainable and 
long-term total return to shareholders.

RISKS  
The major risks we have identified as a potential 
hinderance to growth are:

1. Continued closures and lock downs due to the 
persisting pandemic.

2. Susceptibility to weather and external social 
factors. The very nature of the event industry 
makes it particularly vulnerable to these 
factors. 

Weather: Up to 70% of events are held outdoors 
which can be greatly affected by inclement 
weather, causing cancellations and ultimate loss 
of revenue. 

Social Factors: Many social factors can affect our 
industry - primarily crime, political campaigns, 
changing social trends, inflation and currency 
depreciation. The impact of these on our industry 
is something that we must constantly monitor to 
limit their impact on our bottom line.

Nonetheless, 
management 
remains 
optimistic in 
the outlook for 
the medium to 
longer term.  
We recognize 
that there is 
still a significant 
demand and 
now a yearning 
for leisure and 
entertainment. ”

“



OUR TEAM
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The Main Event team prides itself on being one of the most 
talented in the industry and we are extremely proud of this fact. 

We not only declare but live our mission statement of being “a 
bunch of passionate people committed to creating magical memories 

for our clients”.  

Our team is a diverse mix of creative and driven individuals who have 
come together to form a unique and dynamic structure that constantly 
strives to deliver excellence in every single one of its executions.

2020 Recap: 

There is no understating the impact that the COVID-19 virus has had 
on almost all aspects of our life and ultimately industry. By April 2020, 
the virus had spread like wildfire to over 100 countries, forcing the 
World Health Organization to declare a global pandemic. Country and 
city-wide lockdowns, strict travel bans, mandatory mask wearing 
and “social distancing” have become the new normal. To date 
there have been almost 100 million cases and over 2 million 
deaths worldwide due to this novel coronavirus. 

By far one of the worst affected by the pandemic is 
the events and entertainment industry. 2020 saw the 

cancellation of many large festivals, sporting events and 
live concerts, this done in order to slow the spread of 

the virus. Even weddings and funerals were severely 
curtailed.  The restrictions imposed due to the 

pandemic have impacted almost any small or 
large gathering of persons which is a basic 

requirement for our industry to function.

There is no understating the 
impact that the virus has had 
on almost all aspects of our life 
and ultimately industry. 

“
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As with many businesses local and worldwide our team has 
been forced to adopt the work from home model which has 
allowed us to continue serving our clients but from a safe space. 
The team has faced these challenges with extreme resilience 
and together we have found novel and innovative ways to bring 
people together to share experiences, while still adhering to social 
distancing rules and guidelines. The coronavirus restrictions have 
forced our team to rely on technology to connect with each other, 
our clients and suppliers which have given rise to meeting virtually 
via the online apps Zoom and Microsoft Teams . There are still some 
key members of staff that utilize the office space when required, 
but with strict health and safety measures put in place by our HR 
department.

Our team has also continued to do events, some a hybrid mix of live 
gatherings and virtually while others are fully virtually or pre-recorded 
. Live streaming of most events during 2020 have become the norm 
and our team are now quite adept at planning and executing these 
on behalf of our clients. We have implemented strict safety protocols 
at all our events, ensuring that we sanitize the venue before during 
and after, set up entrance sanitization stations,  wear masks and 
safety gear, cut down on touch points by registering online and 
by ensuring we have adequate venue signage mandating safety 
guidelines. 

As a team we continue to ride out the storm of the 
coronavirus pandemic by remaining positive and staying 
agile nimble and ready to adapt to this new ever evolving 
events landscape. We remain ready to go full speed 
ahead as soon as the pandemic has been brought 
under control.
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DISCLOSURE OF 
SHAREHOLDINGS

TOP TEN (10) SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders       Number of Shares Held % 
Meeg Holdings Limited      240,004,000  80% 
Mayberry Jamaican Equities Limited    33,661,309  11.22%  
KMB Holding INC      1,439,250  0.48% 
Ian Blair        1,220,085  0.41% 
Lannaman & Morris (Shipping) Limited    1,039,505  0.35% 
Owen Sharpe       1,000,000  0.33% 
Hugh Graham       976,376  0.33% 
Duncan P. Stewart      865,866  0.29% 
Donna R. Waithe       847,763  0.28%
Anthony E. Gordon      700,000  0.23% 

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS 
Shareholders  Joint Holder(s)    Number of   %
        Shares  Held  
Harriat Maragh  Lannaman & Morris (Shipping) Limited  1,039,505  0.35%
Donna R. Waithe       847,763  0.28%
Ian Blair        1,220,085  0.41%
Tania Waldron-Gooden      61,912   0.02% 
Hugh Graham       976,376  0.33% 
Meeg Holdings Limited  Mr. Richard Bair & Solomon Sharpe] 240,004,000  80% 

MANAGERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
Shareholders       Number of  %
        Shares Held   
Elaine Maharaja-Rattray      34,742   0.0% 
Donna Hussey       21,035   0.0%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors of Main Event Entertainment Group Limited remains committed to effective Corporate 
Governance and improving its existing governance framework.  The Board is collectively responsible for 
directing the Company’s affairs and its long- term success. 

Guided by board members spanning diverse businesses and personal backgrounds, board meetings and 
their subsequent activities are held at least every two months. To tackle the varying responsibilities that 
come with the board, the dynamic group allows for effective oversight, strategic corporate governance, and 
a comprehensive approach to analysis in guiding the company to achieve its vision.
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At the end of the Company’s financial year, the Board 
comprised of seven (7) Directors, three (3) Executives, and four 
(4) Independent Non-Executives one of whom serves as the 
company’s Mentor.  The Board is chaired by an Independent 
Non-Executive Director, and delegates authority for the day-
to-day management of the company to the Chief Executive 
Officer and the Chief Operating Officer, thereby, maintaining 
a clear division of responsibilities between the running of the 
board and the executive responsibility for the running of the 
company’s business. The Board considers the following four 
members to be independent directors: 

Dr. Ian Blair
Harriat Maragh
hugh Graham 
Tania Waldron-Gooden 

On January 3, 2021, former Chairman of the company died 
and Dr. Blair assumed the position of Acting Chairman in the 
interim.

Directors’ independence:  
The Company in its Corporate Governance Guidelines have 
adopted the definition of Independent Director as one who is 
free of any interest, position, association or relationship that 
might influence or reasonably be perceived to influence, in a 
material respect, his or her capacity to bring an independent 
judgment to bear on issues before the board and to act in the 
best interest of the entity and its stakeholders generally.  

Conflict of Interest:
The company is guided by the provisions of its Articles of 
Association in dealing with directors’ interest to avoid any 
exploitation of property, information or opportunity, whether 
or not the company could take advantage of it. Further to this, 
the Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to help its 
directors and officers comply with insider trading laws and to 
establish guidelines for dealing in the company’s securities. This 
policy is available on the company’s website. The company is 
also in the process of implementing a Code of Conduct and 
Whistleblowing guidelines.

Directors’ Meeting Attendance:
For the year under review, the Board met on several occasions 
as outlined in the Attendance Report contained herein. These 
meetings allowed for the continuous review of Company 
performance to ensure it satisfies objectives pre-set by the 
management team in keeping with the existing economic, social 
and regulatory environment and risks of the market in which 
the Company operates.  During the year, the Board undertook 
a detailed review of the company’s governance structure and 
developed the company’s Corporate Governance Policy which 
was guided by the PSOJ’s code and the rules of the Jamaica 
Stock Exchange Junior Market. The Policy was subsequently 
reviewed by the Regulatory Market Oversight Division of the 
JSE and uploaded to the company’s website. Already some of 
the decisions in the policy had been effected and going forward 
the others would be implemented.  

Re-election and Appointment of Directors
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association one 
third of the directors retire by rotation and are re-elected at 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company.  Board members 
are allowed to co-opt a new director either to fill an existing 
vacancy or as an additional director provided the number of 
directors does not exceed 13. Such new directors are re-elected 
at the Annual General Meeting. The Board has implemented 
additional procedures for the appointment of directors.  

The current committees of the Board are as follows: The Audit 
and Finance Committee, and the Compensation Committee. 

The Audit and Finance Committee is comprised of Non-
Executive Independent Members of the Board and has the 
right to co-opt members of the executive management team to 
attend meetings as deemed necessary.  The internal Auditors 
are Intac Accounting and Tax Services. The Audit Committee 
is an advisor to the Board and provides assurance in the 
areas of financial reporting, compliance with legal regulatory 
requirements, internal controls, risk management, internal and 
external audits and corporate governance. The Committee met 
during the year to review the company’s unaudited quarterly 
and full year audited financial statements and recommend their 
approval by the Board of Directors.  The members of the Audit 
and Finance Committee are as follows:



NAME OF DIRECTORS             AGM BOARD AUDIT & FINANCE  
                COMMITEE
        
Harriat Maragh, Board Chairman 1/1 5/5 1/5 
Dr. Ian Blair,  F.C. Chairman  1/1 5/5 5/5
Solomon Sharpe  1/1 5/5 N/A
Richard Bair  1/1 5/5 N/A           
Donna Waithe  1/1 5/5 5/5
Hugh Graham  1/1 5/5 0/5
Tania Waldron-Gooden, Mentor 1/1 5/5 4/5

MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED BOARD
AND COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE
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AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Dr. Ian Blair  Independent Chairman
Harriat Maragh  Independent Member
Hugh Graham  Independent Member
Tania Waldron-Gooden  Independent Member, Mentor
Donna Waithe  Director Member
Solomon Sharpe  CEO, Director, Invitee
Richard Bair  COO, Director, Invitee

The Compensation Committee recommends the levels of 
compensation for the Executive Directors and key Senior Officers. The 
recommendations, which reflect performance, market conditions and 
best practices, are designed to ensure that the compensation plans 
will attract, retain and motivate the key leadership positions of the 
Company. Policies developed within the Compensation Committee 
are developed to support the business units and forward-thinking 
succession planning. The committee provides guidance for decisions 
surrounding investment in technology and talent. The Committee met 
once during the year to review Executives and Senior Management 
compensation and make recommendations to the Board.

The members of the Compensation Committee are as follows:

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Dr. Ian Blair Independent – Acting Chairman
Solomon Sharpe CEO, Director
Richard Bair COO, Director
Donna Waithe Dir. HR, Director
hugh Graham Independent Director
Tania Waldron-Gooden Independent Director, Mentor

MAIN EvENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE

The attendance of directors at the company’s Board and Audit 
Committee meetings for the year January to December 2020 are 
as follows:



23



AUDITED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS



 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

31 OCTOBER 2020 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
  
 

 
MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 

 
 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 
 
 I N D E X  
 
 

            PAGE 
 

Independent Auditors' Report to the Members 1 - 5 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income   6 
 
Statement of Financial Position   7 
 
Statement of Changes in Equity           8 
 
Statement of Cash Flows   9 
 

 Notes to the Financial Statements 10 - 46 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 













 
 Page 6 
 
 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
  STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
 YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
  
 Note 2020                    2019 
  $’000                   $’000  
 
REVENUE   6 1,046,429 1,799,445   
          
Direct expenses (   564,529) (1,022,726) 
    
GROSS PROFIT  481,900 776,719  
Other operating income 7       7,914       10,344 
              
    489,814     787,063 
     
EXPENSES: 
Administrative and general  (   327,548) (    533,263)  
Selling and promotion (       8,924) (      16,878)  
Depreciation    (   127,636)   (    116,909)  
Amortisation (     20,699)         -       
     
 (   484,807) (   667,050) 
    
OPERATING PROFIT   5,007 120,013  
Finance costs 8 (     23,472) (     19,304) 
      
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  (     18,465) 100,709  
Taxation 11           238 (       3,373)  
 
NET (LOSS)/PROFIT, BEING TOTAL  
 COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR  
  THE YEAR   (     18,227)      97,336  
    
EARNINGS PER STOCK UNIT       12                    (       $0.06)        $0.33 
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MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 

 
 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 
 YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 
                                   Share                   Retained          
                                  Capital            Earnings                     Total 
                   Note         $’000                      $’000                       $’000 
 
 
BALANCE AT 31 OCTOBER 2018 
(Previously stated)  103,652       437,337 540,989 
 
Effects of change in accounting 
Policy – IFRS 9 Financial 
 Instruments                                                      -       (  41,487) ( 41,487) 
 
BALANCE AT 31 OCTOBER 2018                           103,652              395,850 499,502 
 (Restated) 
 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME                                
Net profit     -         97,336         97,336 
 
TRANSACTION WITH OWNERS  
Dividend paid 23     -       (  18,000)        (  18,000) 
 
BALANCE AT 31 OCTOBER 2019  103,652 475,186 578,838 
 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
 Net loss          -       (  18,227) (  18,227) 
 
TRANSACTION WITH OWNERS  
Dividend paid 23     -       (  27,001)        (  27,001) 
 
BALANCE AT 31 OCTOBER 2020  103,652 429,958 533,610 
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MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
 YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020  
 
  2020            2019 
  $’000       $’000     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
  Net (loss)/profit  (  18,227) 97,336  
  Items not affecting cash resources: 
    Depreciation  127,636 116,909  
    Interest expense  23,472 19,304  
    Interest income   (   3,469) (       650)  
    Exchange loss/(gain) on foreign balances  3,350 3,126  
    Taxation expense  (      238) 3,373  
    Right-of-use assets amortisation     20,699       -        
 
  153,223 239,398   
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
   Receivables  198,832 6,888  
 Taxation recoverable   (      168)   -       
   Related party balances  13,688 (  76,455)  
 Payables (  91,153)    30,251  
 
  274,422 200,082  
   Taxation paid       -      (       282)  
        

Cash provided by operating activities  274,422 199,800    
       
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
    Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (  59,397) (248,117)  
    Interest received      3,469        650  
 
  Cash used in investing activities  (  55,928) (247,467)  
  
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:  
    Loan received  -       70,978  
    Finance lease  -       5,721  
    Loan repayments  (  27,278) (  25,215)  
    Lease repayments  (    6,702) (    6,359) 
    Lease liabilities payment           (  18,603) -     
    Interest paid  (  23,472) (  19,304)  
    Dividend payment  (  27,001) (  18,000)  
 
  Cash (used in)/provided by financing activities  (  103,056)     7,821 
      
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 115,438 (  39,846)  
Exchange gain on foreign cash balances  (    6,066) (    2,455)  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year    22,751   65,052  
      
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Note 17)  132,123   22,751 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
1. IDENTIFICATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES: 
 

(a) Main Event Entertainment Group Limited is a limited liability company incorporated and 
domiciled in Jamaica.  The registered office of the company is 70-72 Lady Musgrave Road, 
Kingston 10. 

  
(b) The principal activities of the company are to carry on the business of entertainment 

promoter, agent and manager. 
 
(c) The company is a subsidiary of MEEG Holdings, a company incorporated and domiciled in 

Saint Lucia. 
 
(d) The company was listed on the Junior Market of the Jamaica Stock Exchange on 8 

February 2017. 
 
2. REPORTING CURRENCY: 
  

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the company operates (‘the functional 
currency’).  These financial statements are presented in Jamaican dollars, which is considered 
the company’s functional and presentation currency.  

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are 
set out below.  The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.  
Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated. 
 
(a) Basis of preparation  

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and Interpretations (collectively IFRS) and, 
comply with the requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act.  The financial statements 
have also been prepared under the historical cost convention. 
  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates.  It also requires management to exercise its 
judgment in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 

  
(a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)  

 
Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
As a result of Government imposed restrictions on social gatherings and other activities 
designed to prevent the spread of COVID-19 the company’s ability to carry out its 
principal activities were negatively impacted. 
 
As a result, the company's revenues and expenses for the financial year ended 31 
October 2020 are significantly lower than the revenues and expenses for the year ended 
31 October 2019. In addition, the company has experienced lower revenues and 
expenses in the period subsequent to the year end. 

Going Concern 

Under the going concern assumption, an entity is viewed as continuing in business for 
the foreseeable future. Financial statements and, in particular, all general-purpose 
financial statements, are therefore prepared on a going concern basis, unless 
management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. When the use of the going concern assumption is 
appropriate, assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able 
to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has developed rapidly in 2020. The resulting impact of the 
pandemic on the operations and measures taken by the government to contain the 
pandemic have negatively affected the company's results in the reporting period. The 
currently known impacts of COVID-19 on the company are: 

 A 42% decline in revenues for the 2020 financial year to $1.046 billion compared 
with the financial year in 2019 of $1.799 billion. 

 A net loss of $18 million compared with profit in the financial year 2019 of $97 
million  

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the company has taken and continues to take 
significant measures to preserve cash and control costs including the following: 

 Suspension of non-essential operating expenditure, including marketing & 
promotional and travel and entertainment expenses; and where possible, reducing 
essential operating expenditures to minimum levels necessary while the ban on the 
entertainment sector remains in place. 

 Termination or deferment of all non-essential capital expenditure. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 

  
(a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)  

 
Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic (cont’d) 
 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the company has taken and continues to take 
significant measures to preserve cash and control costs including the following (cont’d): 

 Implementation of measures to reduce staff costs, including the curtailment of 
working hours as well as the number of days being worked for accounting and 
administrative staff and undertaking voluntary redundancy exercises. 

 Working with the company's vendors and other business partners to manage, defer, 
and/or reduce related expenses and existing liabilities. 

 The company sought and was granted rent concessions from some of its landlords 
during the period of disruption caused by the pandemic. 

 The company has also sought opportunities for generating additional income from 
other sources, primarily through the expansion of our digital marketing and signage 
services. 

 The company took advantage of moratorium offered by its lenders. 
 

The company has also prepared a detailed budget and cash flow forecasts which entail 
plans for growth and amendment in the current business model. 

 
The company's ability to generate sufficient cash to support its operations will depend 
on, among other things, the timing of a full resumption of operations. While the 
company has a history of generating sufficient cash flows, there is no guarantee that 
such cash flows will be generated in the future given the current COVID-19 restrictions 
and the fact that there is currently no timeline for the further easing of these 
restrictions. The company however believes that the measures implemented, as 
discussed above, should facilitate orderly conducting of operations for the foreseeable 
future, and therefore, that the going concern basis of preparation of the financial 
statements, is appropriate. 
 
However, the circumstances surrounding the pandemic represents a material 
uncertainty that may cast a doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going 
concern and therefore whether the company will realise its assets and settle its 
liabilities in the ordinary course of business at the amounts recorded in the financial 
statements. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 

  
(a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)  

 
New standards, interpretations and amendments effective in the current year 
 
Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been 
published that became effective during the current financial year. The company has 
assessed the relevance of all such new standards, amendments and clarifications and has 
put into effect the following, which is immediately relevant to its operations: 
 

IFRS 16, 'Leases'(effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019). The standard eliminates the current dual accounting model for 
lessees, which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-
balance sheet operating leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet 
accounting model that is similar to current finance lease accounting. Entities will be 
required to bring all major leases on balance sheet, recognizing new assets and 
liabilities. The on-balance sheet liability will attract interest; the total lease 
expense will be higher in the early years of a lease even if a lease has fixed regular 
cash rentals. Optional lessee exemption will apply to short- term leases and for low-
value items with value of US$5,000 or less. 
   
Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice as the lessor will continue to 
classify leases as finance and operating leases. 
   
The adoption of IFRS 16 from the 1 November resulted in changes in accounting 
policies and adjustments to amounts recognized in the 2019 financial statements. In 
accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 16, comparative figures have not 
been restated. Details of the new accounting policies are outlined in Note 3 (i) and 
the impact on the financial statements on the adoption of the new standard is 
disclosed in Note 22. 
 

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective and not early 
adopted 

 
The following amendments and interpretations, that are not yet effective and have not 
been adopted early in these financial statements, will or may have an effect on the 
company’s future financial statements: 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

    31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 
  
 (a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)  

 
New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective and not early 
adopted (cont’d) 
 

Revised Conceptual Framework for Reporting (effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2020).  The revised Conceptual Framework will 
be used in standard-setting decisions with immediate effect; however, no change 
will be made to any of the current accounting standards.  Entities that apply the 
Conceptual Framework in determining accounting policies will need to consider 
whether their accounting policies are still applicable under the revised 
Framework.  The company is currently assessing the impact of this revision. 

 
IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of Material - Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).  The IASB 
issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the 
definition of ‘material’ across the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the 
definition. The new definition states that, ’Information is material if omitting, 
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that 
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of 
those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific 
reporting entity’. 

 
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude 
of information, or both. An entity will need to assess whether the information, 
either individually or in combination with other information, is material in the 
context of the financial statements. The amendments are not expected to have 
any impact on the financial statements of the company.  

 
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ (effective for 
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). This narrow-scope 
amendment to IAS 1 on classification of liabilities clarify that liabilities are 
classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the 
end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectation of the 
company or event after the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a waiver or 
a breach of covenant).  This amendment is not expected to have any impact on the 
financial statements of the company.
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

    31 OCTOBER 2020 
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 
  
 (a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)  

 
New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective and not early 
adopted (cont’d) 

 
Amendment to IFRS 16, 'Leases' - COVID-19 related rent recession (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020). As a result of the coronavirus 
(COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such concessions 
might take a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease 
payments. On 28 May 2020, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides 
an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a rent concession 
related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for such rent 
concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In 
many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession as variable lease payments 
in the period(s) In which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payment 
occurs. The company will assess the impact of future adoption of this amendment on its 
financial statements. 

 
(b) Foreign currency translation  
 

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. 
 
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated to Jamaican dollars 
using the closing rate as at the reporting date.   
 
Exchange differences arising from the settlement of transactions at rates different from 
those at the dates of the transactions and unrealized foreign exchange differences on 
unsettled foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or 
loss. 
 

(c) Property, plant and equipment  
 
Items of property, plant and equipment are recorded at historical cost, less 
accumulated depreciation.  Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED  
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 

 
(c) Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 

 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis at such rates as will write off the 
carrying value of the assets over the period of their expected useful lives.  Annual rates 
are as follows: 

 
Leasehold improvements 10% 
Audio and filming equipment 10% 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% 
Motor vehicles 12.5%   
Equipment 15% 
Computers 20% 
Rentals and décor 15-33 1/3% 
Building 2.5% 

 
Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
reference to their carrying amounts and are taken into account in determining profit. 

 
  The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at 

each reporting date. 
 
 (d) Impairment of non-current assets  

 
Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for 
impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognized for the 
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the greater of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.  Non financial 
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the 
impairment at each reporting date. 

 
(e) Financial instruments  

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one 
entity and a financial liability or equity in another entity. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 
 

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d) 
 

Financial assets  
 

Classification and measurement 
 
The company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost based on the model used 
for managing the financial assets and the assets’ contractual terms. 

  
Amortised cost 
 
These are assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, the contractual 
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.  
Interest income from these financial assets is included in the income statement using 
the effective interest rate.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised 
directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as a line item in the income 
statement.   
 
The company’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, 
due from related party and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial 
position.   
 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other 
short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

 
  Impairment  
 

The company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) 
associated with its financial assets classified amortised cost.  

 
The ECL will be recognised in profit or loss before a loss event has occurred.  The 
measurement of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is 
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes.  The probability-weighted 
outcome considers multiple scenarios based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.  
Under current guidance, impairment amount represents the single best outcome; the 
time value of money; and reasonable and supportable information that is available 
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions 
and forecasts of future economic conditions. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 

 
(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)  
 

  Impairment (cont’d) 
 

Application of the Simplified Approach  
 

For receivables, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, 
which requires that the impairment provision is measured at initial recognition and 
throughout the life of the receivables using a lifetime ECL.  As a practical expedient, a 
provision matrix is utilised in determining the lifetime ECLs for receivables.  
 
The lifetime ECLs are determined by taking into consideration historical rates of default 
for each segment of aged receivables as well as the estimated impact of forward 
looking information. 
 
Derecognition 
 
The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and 
it does not retain control of the financial asset.  

 
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of 
the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) 
and the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any 
new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.  

 
Financial liabilities 

 
The company’s financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of 
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.  At the reporting date, the following items were classified as financial 
liabilities: loans, lease liabilities, due to related companies, bank overdraft and trade 
payables. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 

 
(f) Borrowings  

 
Borrowings are recognized initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs 
incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective 
yield method.  Any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the 
redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings. 

 
(g) Current and deferred income taxes  

    
Taxation expense in profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax charges. 

 
Current tax charges are based on taxable profits for the year, which differ from the 
profit before tax reported because taxable profits exclude items that are taxable or 
deductible in other years, and items that are never taxable or deductible.  The 
company’s liability for current tax is calculated at tax rates that have been enacted at 
the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax is the tax that is expected to be paid or recovered on differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases.  
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary 
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts in the financial statements.  Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are 
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the 
deferred income tax liability is settled. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 
 
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except where it relates to items 
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or equity, in which case deferred 
tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income or equity.      

 
(h) Revenue recognition  

 
Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the 
services rendered in the ordinary course of the company’s activities.  Revenue is shown 
net of discount allowance.  The company recognizes revenue when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured, it is possible that future economic benefits will flow 
to the company and when the specific criteria have been met for each of the 
company’s activities as described below. 
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 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 
        

(h) Revenue recognition (cont’d) 
 
Revenue from entertainment promotion, digital signage and audio and film are 
recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered by reference to 
completion of the specific transaction, assessed on the basis of the actual services 
provided.   These services are rendered as a single performance contract or as multiple 
performance obligations within a contract.  A contract with several performance 
obligations are normally for a period of six (6) to twelve (12) months.  Revenue is 
recognized when the performance obligations are satisfied.    
          
The company collects deposits on contracts for mobilization.  These deposits are 
initially recognized as deferred income and recognized as revenue when the 
performance obligations are completed. 

 
Interest income is recognised in the income statement for all interest-bearing 
instruments on an accrual basis unless collectability is doubtful. 

 
(i) Leases  

 
Policy applicable after 1 November 2019 
 
All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a corresponding 
lease liability except for: 
 

•  Leases of low value assets; and 
• Leases with a duration of 12 months or less. 

 
Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to 
the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference to the 
rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily 
determinable, in which case the company’s incremental borrowing rate on 
commencement of the lease is used. Variable lease payments are only included in the 
measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the 
initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain 
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in 
the period to which they relate.                  
 
On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes: 
 

 amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee; 
 the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the company if it 

is reasonably certain to assess that option; and 
 any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has 

been estimated on the basis of termination option being exercised. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 

 
(i) Leases (cont’d) 

 
Policy applicable after 1 November 2019 (cont’d) 

 
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial value of the 
lease liability reduced for any lease incentives received, and increased for: 
 

 lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease; 
 initial direct costs incurred; and 
 the amount of any provision recognised where the company is contractually 

required to dismantle, remove or restore the leased asset. 
 
Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest 
charged at a constant rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease 
payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the 
remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, 
this is judged to be shorter than the lease term. 
 
Property, plant and equipment includes right-of-use assets previously held under 
finance lease. 
 
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the lease terms on a straight-line 
basis.  If the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-
use assets are depreciated over the underlying assets’ useful life. 

 
Policy applicable up to 31 October 2019 
 
Leases of property where the entity has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance charges are expensed in the 
statement of profit or loss over the lease period.  Leases where a significant portion of 
the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating 
leases. Payments under operating leases are charged as an expense in the statement of 
profit or loss on the straight- line basis over the period of the lease. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D):    

 
 (j) Related party identification  
 
  A party is related to the company if: 
 

(i) directly or indirectly the party: 
 

- controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the company; 
- has an interest in the company that gives it significant influence over the 

company; or 
- has joint control over the company.      

        
(ii) the party is an associate of the company; 

 
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the company is a venturer; 

 
(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the company 

 
(v) the party is a close member of the family of an individual referred to in (i) or 

(iv) above; 
   
(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly 

influenced by, or for which significant costing power in such entity resides with, 
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v) above; or 

 
(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the 

company, or of any company that is a related party of the company. 
 

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between 
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged. 
 

(k) Dividend distribution  
 

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the 
company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by 
the company’s shareholders. 

 
Dividends for the year that are declared after the reporting date are dealt with in the 
subsequent events note. 
 

 (l) Share capital  
   

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the 
proceeds. 
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4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES: 
 

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances. 

                       
(a) Critical judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies  

 
In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has not 
made any judgements that it believes would cause a significant impact on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements. 

 
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty  

 
The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  The resulting 
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.  The 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below: 
 

 (i) Depreciable assets 
 

Estimates of the useful lives and the residual values of property, plant and 
equipment are required in order to apply an adequate rate of transferring the 
economic benefits embodied in these assets in the relevant periods.  The 
company applies a variety of methods in an effort to arrive at these estimates 
from which actual results may vary.  Actual variations in estimated useful lives 
and residual values are reflected in profit or loss through impairment or 
adjusted depreciation provisions. 

 
(ii) Income taxes  

 
Estimates are required in determining the provision for income tax.  There are 
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain.  The company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues 
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.  Where the final 
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially 
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which determination is made.   
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4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D): 
 

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d) 
 

(iii) Allowance for expected credit losses on receivables 
  
In determining amounts recorded for impairment of accounts receivable in the 
financial statements, management makes judgements regarding indicators of 
impairment, that is, whether there are indicators that suggest there may be a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from accounts 
receivable, for example, repayment default and adverse economic conditions. 

 
Management also makes estimates of the likely estimated future cash flows 
from impaired accounts receivable, as well as the timing of such cash flows. 
Expected credit losses (ECL) is applied to determine impairment of financial 
assets. When measuring ECL, the company considers the maximum contractual 
period over which the company is exposed to credit risk. All contractual terms 
are considered when determining the expected life.  The expected life is 
estimated based on the period over which the company is exposed to credit risk 
and where the credit losses would not be mitigated by management actions. 

 
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 

The company is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks: 
 

- Credit risk 
- Market risk 
- Liquidity risk 

 
In common with all other businesses, the company is exposed to risks that arise from its use of 
financial instruments.  This note describes the company’s objectives, policies and processes for 
managing those risks and the methods used to measure them.  Further quantitative information 
in respect of these risks are presented throughout these financial statements. 

 
There have been no substantive changes in the company’s exposure to financial instrument 
risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to 
measure them from previous periods unless otherwise stated in this note. 

 
  
 
 
 
 



 

 

                     
                                        Page 25 
 MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 31 OCTOBER 2020 
 
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 
          

(a) Principal financial instruments 
 

The principal financial instruments used by the company, from which financial 
instrument risk arises, are as follows: 

 
 Trade receivables  
 Cash and bank balances 
 Trade payables 
 Related party balances 
 Long term loans 
 Lease liabilities 
 Bank overdraft 

   
(b) Financial instruments by category 
 

   Financial assets  
 
                      Amortised          
                          Cost                    
    2020   2019 
    $’000      $’000  
    
                        Cash and bank balances 132,250 67,409  
                        Trade receivables 38,902 221,769  
                        Due from related parties   15,640   44,192  
  
 Total financial assets  186,792 333,370 
 

Financial liabilities  
                                                                                                     Amortised  
                       Cost              
    2020 2019 
    $’000     $’000 
     
                        Trade payables 39,103 103,696  
                        Due to related parties 6,931 6,498  
                        Related party loan 20,245 33,115  
                        Long term loans 145,118 172,396  
                        Lease liabilities 74,476 24,275  
                        Bank overdraft       127   44,658 
 
                        Total financial liabilities 286,000 384,638 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 
 

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value 
 
Financial instruments not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, 
receivables, payables, long term loans and related party balances. 

 
Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, 
receivables and payables approximates their fair value. 

 
(d)       Financial risk factors  

 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the determination of the company’s 
risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility 
for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that 
ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the company’s 
finance function.  The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as 
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit 
risk and investments of excess liquidity. 

 
The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as 
possible without unduly affecting the company's competitiveness and flexibility. Further 
details regarding these policies are set out below: 
 
(i)  Market risk 

 
Market risk arises from the company's use of interest bearing, tradable and 
foreign currency financial instruments. It is the risk that the fair value or future 
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
interest rates (interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or 
other market factors (other price risk).  

 
Currency risk 
 
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.   
 
The company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risks 
arising primarily with respect to the United States Dollars.  The company 
manages this risk by ensuring that the net exposure in foreign assets and 
liabilities is kept to an acceptable level by monitoring currency positions.  The 
company further manages this risk by maximizing foreign currency earnings and 
holding net foreign currency assets.  The company’s statement of financial 
position at 31 December includes aggregates net foreign assets/(liabilities) as 
follows: 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 

 
(d)       Financial risk factors (cont’d)  

 
(i)  Market risk (cont’d) 

 
Currency risk (cont’d) 
 

    2020 2019 
    $’000     $’000    
  

         Cash at bank 18,312 52,858  
         Trade receivables 4,257 8,094  
         Trade payables (  12,674) (  32,494)  
         Long term loans (123,094) (143,615)   
         Related company (  19,307) (  33,115)  

 
        Net liabilities (132,506) (148,272) 
             

Foreign currency sensitivity 
 
The following table indicates the sensitivity of (loss)/profit before taxation to 
changes in foreign exchange rates.  The change in currency rate below 
represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign 
exchange rates.  The sensitivity analysis represents outstanding foreign 
currency denominated balances as indicated above, and adjusts their 
translation at the year-end for 6% (2019 – 6%) depreciation and a 2% (2019 – 4%) 
appreciation of the Jamaican dollar against the US dollar.  The changes below 
would have no impact on other components of equity.  
 

   Effect on  Effect on  
     Loss before  Profit before 
  % Change in Tax % Change in Tax 
  Currency rate          31 October  Currency rate 31 October  
  2020 2020 2019 2019 
   $’000  $’000 
                      Currency:         

          USD -6 7,950 -6 (8,896)  
         USD                     +2 (2,650) +4 5,931  
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 
 

(d)       Financial risk factors (cont’d)  
 

(i)  Market risk (cont’d) 
 
Price risk 
 
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as 
a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting 
all instruments traded in the market.  The company is currently not exposed 
to price risk.  
 
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 
 
Floating rate instruments expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk, 
whereas fixed rate instruments expose the company to fair value interest 
rate risk. 
 
Short term deposits and long term loans are the only interest bearing assets 
and liabilities respectively, within the company.  The company’s short term 
deposits are due to mature within 3 months of the reporting date. 
 
Interest rate sensitivity 
 
There is no significant exposure to interest rate risk on short term deposits, as 
these deposits have a short term to maturity and are constantly reinvested 
at current market rates. 

 
(ii) Credit risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to 
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  
Credit risk arises from trade receivables, due from related company and cash 
and bank balances. 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 
 

(d)       Financial risk factors (cont’d)  
 

(ii) Credit risk (cont’d)  
 

Cash and bank balances 
 
Cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institutions.  The 
company has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one 
financial institution. 
 
Maximum exposure to credit risk 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of trade 
and other receivables, due from related company and cash and cash equivalents 
in the statement of financial position. 

 
Trade receivables 
 
Revenue transactions in respect of the company’s primary operations are 
settled either in cash or by using major credit cards.  For its operations done on 
a credit basis, the company has policies in place to ensure that sales of services 
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. 

   
Customer credit risks are monitored according to credit characteristics such as 
whether it is an individual or company, geographic location, industry, aging 
profile and previous financial difficulties.  Trade receivables relate mainly to 
the company’s customers. The company’s average credit period on the 
provision of services is 30 days. 
  
The company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected 
credit losses using a lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade 
receivables. To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade 
receivables are grouped based on similar credit risk and aging. 
 
The expected loss rates are based on the company’s historical credit losses 
experienced over the period prior to the period end. The historical loss rates 
are then adjusted for current and forward-looking information on 
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the 
receivables. The company has identified the inflation rate of the country in 
which it offers its service to be the most relevant factor, and accordingly 
adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors. 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 
 

(d)       Financial risk factors (cont’d)  
 

(ii) Credit risk (cont’d)  
 
 Trade receivables (cont’d) 

 
The following table provides information about the ECLs for trade receivables 
as at 31 October 2020. 

             
  Gross Expected 
 Aging                     Carrying Amount   Loss Rate        ECL Allowance 

   $’000         %                       $’000 
Trade receivables: 
0-30 days 32,947   6.2                            8,809 
31-60 days 2,445 4.6 656  
61-90 days  4,510 8.5 1,206 
90 and over 13,201 25.0   3,530 
  
 53,103  14,201 

 
The following table provides information about the ECLs for trade receivables 
as at 31 October 2019. 

             
  Gross Expected 
 Aging                     Carrying Amount   Loss Rate     ECL Allowance 

   $’000         %                   $’000 
Trade receivables: 
0-30 days 168,639 4.166                     7,026 
31-60 days 21,546 4.17 898  
61-90 days  18,694 19.99 3,736 
90 and over    84,532 70.958 59,982 
  
  293,411  71,642 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 
 

(d)       Financial risk factors (cont’d)  
 

(ii) Credit risk (cont’d)  
 
Movements in the impairment allowance for trade receivables are as follows: 
 
 2020 2019 
     $’000 $’000 
 
At 1 November 71,642 13,538 
Restated through opening retained earnings      -        41,487. 
 
Opening provision for impairment of  
  trade receivables  71,642 55,025 
  -      
Movement on ECL    (57,441)       -       
  

                                    Impairment loss during the year      -      16,617 
 

At 31 October 14,201 71,642
  
The majority of trade receivables are due from customers in Jamaica. 

 
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been 
included in expenses in profit or loss. Amounts charged to the allowance 
account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering 
additional cash.  
 
Concentration of risk – trade receivables 
 
The following table summarises the company’s credit exposure for trade 
receivables at their carrying amounts, as categorized by the customer sector: 

 
  2020 2019 
  $’000 $’000 

 
 M Style Rental & Décor 9,242  60,136  
 Entertainment promotions 36,559 179,559  
 Digital signage 4,644 16,601  
 Audio and film   2,658   37,115  
      53,103 293,411  
 Less:  Provision for credit losses (14,201) (  71,642)  
 

 38,902 221,769  
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 
 

(d)       Financial risk factors (cont’d)  
 

(iii) Liquidity risk  
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will be unable to meet its payment 

obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due.  Prudent 
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable 
securities, and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions.  
 
Liquidity risk management process 
 
The company’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the 
company and monitored by the Accounts Department, includes: 
 
(i) Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a weekly basis. 
(ii) Maintaining committed lines of credit. 
(iii) Optimising cash returns on investments. 

 
Cash flows of financial liabilities  
 
The maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities, based on contractual 
undiscounted payments, is as follows:  

     
    Within 1  1 to 2      2 to 5        
 Year   Years     Years              Total 
   $’000      $’000      $’000     $’000     
  
 At 31 October 2020 

             Trade payables 39,103    -     -     39,103 
                                    Related party -     21,933 -     21,933 
             Bank overdraft 127    -     -     127 
             Lease liabilities 5,772 14,393 3,335 23,500 
             Long term loans 49,439 46,883 100,553 196,875 
             Total financial liabilities  
 (contractual maturity dates)  94,441 83,209 103,888 281,538 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D): 

 
(d)       Financial risk factors (cont’d)  

 
(iii) Liquidity risk (cont’d) 
 

Cash flows of financial liabilities (cont’d) 
 
    Within 1  1 to 2      2 to 5        
 Year   Years     Years              Total 
   $’000      $’000      $’000     $’000     
  
 At 31 October 2019 

             Trade payables 103,696    -      -      103,696 
                                    Related party 6,498 11,038 22,077 39,613 
             Bank overdraft 44,658    -     -      44,658 
             Lease liabilities 7,890  15,780     6,951 30,621 
             Long term loans   19,418 38,836 174,634 232,888 
             Total financial liabilities  

             (contractual maturity dates) 182,160 65,654 203,662 451,476      
 

(e) Capital management  
 

The company’s objectives when managing capital are: 
 
(i) to safeguard the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to 

provide returns for stockholders and benefits for other stakeholders; 
(ii) to maintain a strong capital base which is sufficient for the future development 

of the company’s operations; and 
(iii) to ensure compliance with all capital requirements as stipulated by loan 

covenants. 
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6. REVENUE:         
 2020            2019  
 $’000      $’000     
  
            Audio and film 147,313 268,243  
            Digital signage 84,907 100,925 
            Entertainment promotions 697,718 1,252,777  
            M Style Rental & Décor 112,291 160,700  
 M Academy       4,200     16,800   
  
  1,046,429 1,799,445 
 
 
7.  OTHER OPERATING INCOME: 
 2020            2019  
 $’000      $’000     
 
            Interest income 3,469 650  
            Other income 4,445   9,694  
  
 7,914 10,344  
    
8. FINANCE COSTS: 
 2020            2019  
 $’000      $’000     
 
            Loan interest 13,841 18,617  
            Other finance charges   9,631      687  
  
             23,472 19,304
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9. EXPENSES BY NATURE: 
 
 Total direct and administration expenses: 
 2020            2019  
 $’000      $’000     
 
            Signature events expenses 432,059 776,117  
            Audio and filming costs 24,422 51,226  
            Digital signage costs 26,793 49,294  
 M Academy  4,195 15,210   
            M Style costs 61,298 104,932   
            Freight expenses 15,763 25,948  
            Donation and subscription 10,566 7,560 
            Sponsorship 21,184 5,302  
            Directors’ remuneration 17,709 26,668  
            Staff costs (note 10) 206,252 258,142  
            Advertising and entertainment 8,924 16,878  
            Rent 4,682 30,081  
            Utilities 21,528 23,462  
            Audit fees 2,200 2,100  
            Repairs and maintenance 9,759 13,550  
            Gasoline 15,626 37,227  
            Motor vehicle expenses 14,964 33,629  
            Printing, stationery and office expenses 8,908 17,225  
            Security 17,128 17,770  
            Research and development 380 4,423  
            Depreciation 127,636 116,909 
            Amortisation 20,699 -       
            Bad debts 19,606 4,380 
            (Decrease)/increase expected credit losses  (   57,441) 16,617  
            Loss on foreign exchange translation 3,676 6,565  
            Other operating expenses 90 10,048  
            Legal and professional fees 4,494 11,103  
            Insurance        6,236       7,410  
  
 1,049,336 1,689,776 
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10. STAFF COSTS: 
  2020 2019 

  $’000    $’000    
 
            Wages and salaries  189,627 247,696  
            Staff welfare and Insurance    13,985   10,446  
            Redundancy     2,640     -        
 
  206,252 258,142 

   
11. TAXATION EXPENSE: 
 

(a) Taxation is computed on the (loss)/profit for the year, adjusted for tax purposes, and 
comprises income tax at 25%. 

  2020 2019    
  $’000    $’000       

 
Deferred tax (note 14) (238) 3,373  

 
  (238) 3,373  

  
(b) The tax on the (loss)/profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that 

would arise using the applicable tax rate of 25%, as follows: 
 

  2020 2019 
  $’000 $’000 

 
(Loss)/profit before taxation (18,465) 100,709  
 
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates (  4,616) 25,177  
Adjusted for the effects of: 
  Expenses not deductible for tax 39,136 29,878  
  Remission of taxes (  3,145) (  22,698)       
  Net effect of other charges and allowances (31,613) (  28,984)  
 
  (    238)    3,373 
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11. TAXATION EXPENSE (CONT’D): 

 
(c) Remission of income tax: 
 

On 8 February 2017, the company’s shares were listed on the Junior Market of the 
Jamaica Stock Exchange. Consequently, the company is entitled to a remission of 
income tax for ten (10) years in the proportions set out below, provided the shares 
remain listed for at least 15 years. 
 
Year 1 to 5    100% 
Year 5 to 10   50% 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the company will have 
the full benefit of the tax remissions.  

 
 

12. EARNINGS PER STOCK UNIT: 
 
 The calculation of earnings per stock unit is based on the profit after taxation and the weighted 

average number of stock units in issue during the year. 
 
  2020 2019 

 
Net (loss)/profit attributable to stockholders ($’000) ( 18,227) 97,336  
Weighted average of ordinary stock units (‘000) 300,005 300,005  
Basic earnings per stock unit ($ per share) (     0.06)      0.33  

 
 
 



  

   
   

   
   

Pa
ge

 3
8 

M
A

IN
 E

VE
N

T 
EN

TE
RT

A
IN

M
EN

T 
G

RO
U

P 
LI

M
IT

ED
 

 
N

O
TE

S 
TO

 T
H

E 
FI

N
A

N
CI

A
L 

ST
A

TE
M

EN
TS

 
 

31
 O

CT
O

BE
R 

20
20

 
13

. 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y,

 P
LA

N
T 

A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T:

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

   
   

   
  L

ea
se

ho
ld

   
   

Fu
rn

it
ur

e 
  C

om
pu

te
r 

   
A

ud
io

 &
   

   
Re

nt
al

s 
   

   
 M

ot
or

 
 

 
 

 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t 

   
Bu

ild
in

g 
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
  &

 F
ix

tu
re

s 
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
  F

ilm
in

g 
   

  &
 D

éc
or

   
   

V
eh

ic
le

s 
   

   
  T

ot
al

 
 

 
 

 
   

 $
’0

00
   

   
   

$’
00

0 
   

   
   

$’
00

0 
 $

’0
00

  
   

   
 $

’0
00

 
  $

’0
00

   
   

   
$’

00
0 

   
   

  $
’0

00
   

   
   

  $
’0

00
 

  
Co

st
: 

 
   

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
8 

22
5,

91
3 

34
,9

87
   

  
7,

04
5 

9,
13

0 
40

,5
76

 
41

3,
03

7 
94

,0
81

 
71

,1
46

 
89

5,
91

5 
   

   
   

  A
dd

it
io

ns
 

   
   

  7
5,

26
7 

  5
,6

23
 

   
 6

,2
80

 
  2

,2
10

 
18

,2
50

 
11

6,
05

2 
  1

9,
55

0 
  4

,8
85

 
   

24
8,

11
7 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
9 

30
1,

18
0 

40
,6

10
 

13
,3

25
 

11
,3

40
 

58
,8

26
 

52
9,

08
9 

11
3,

63
1 

76
,0

31
 

1,
14

4,
03

2 
   

   
   

   
  A

dd
it

io
ns

  
  1

0,
20

2 
   

 -
   

   
   

  3
97

 
   

  7
61

 
   

 2
,8

02
 

  1
7,

32
0 

  1
8,

52
3 

  9
,3

92
 

   
 5

9,
39

7 
    

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

02
0 

31
1,

38
2 

40
,6

10
 

13
,7

22
 

12
,1

01
 

61
,6

28
 

54
6,

40
9 

13
2,

15
4 

85
,4

23
 

1,
20

3,
42

9 
  

De
pr

ec
ia

ti
on

: 
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
8 

  9
8,

60
0 

   
  -

   
   

2,
59

4 
3,

59
0 

28
,4

34
 

20
3,

97
1 

   
  9

,1
20

 
34

,1
68

 
38

0,
47

7 
   

   
   

   
  C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

  3
8,

96
7 

  1
,0

62
   

   
  1

,0
99

 
   

  9
37

 
  6

,4
91

 
  4

3,
60

3 
18

,2
74

 
  6

,4
76

 
  1

16
,9

09
 

 
    

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
9 

  1
37

,5
67

 
  1

,0
62

 
  3

,6
93

 
  4

,5
27

 
34

,9
25

 
24

7,
57

4 
  2

7,
39

4 
40

,6
44

 
   

49
7,

38
6 

   
   

   
   

  C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
  4

3,
43

3 
  1

,4
16

 
  1

,3
66

 
   

 9
61

 
   

 7
,9

33
 

  4
2,

50
5 

22
,5

72
 

  7
,4

50
 

  1
27

,6
36

 
    

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

02
0 

18
1,

00
0 

  2
,4

78
 

  5
,0

59
 

  5
,4

88
 

42
,8

58
 

29
0,

07
9 

  4
9,

96
6 

48
,0

94
 

   
62

5,
02

2 
  

N
et

 B
oo

k 
Va

lu
e:

 
   

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

02
0 

13
0,

38
2 

38
,1

32
 

  8
,6

63
 

  6
,6

13
 

18
,7

70
 

25
6,

33
0 

82
,1

88
 

37
,3

29
 

   
57

8,
40

7 
    

   
   

   
  3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
9 

16
3,

61
3 

39
,5

48
 

  9
,6

32
 

  6
,8

13
 

23
,9

01
 

28
1,

51
5 

86
,2

37
 

35
,3

87
 

   
64

6,
64

6 
 



 

 

                        Page 39 
MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
31 OCTOBER 2020 

   
14. DEFERRED TAX: 
             

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a 
principal tax rate of 25%. 

 
The movement in the deferred tax account is as follows: 
  2020 2019 
  $’000     $’000     
 

Balance at start of year 2,508 5,881  
Charge for the year (note 11)    238 (3,373)  
 
Balance at end of year 2,746 2,508  
 

Deferred tax is due to the following temporary differences:  
  2020 2019 
  $’000     $’000     
 

Accelerated capital allowances 2,852 3,012  
Unrealized foreign exchange (   106) (   504)   
 
  2,746 2,508 
 

Deferred tax charged to profit or loss comprises the following temporary differences: 
 
  2020 2019 
  $’000     $’000    
 

Accelerated capital allowances 714 (3,052)  
Unrealized foreign exchange (    476)   (   321)   
 

      238 (3,373)  
  
15. RECEIVABLES:   
                        2020                2019 
                       $’000   $’000 
 
            Trade receivables  53,103 293,411  
            Less – expected credit losses (14,201) (   71,642)  
  
            Trade receivables (net) 38,902 221,769  
            Prepayments 8,168 6,662  
            Staff loans 6,553 7,177  
            Freight deposit -     23,155      
            Other 15,488    9,180 
 
  69,111 267,943  
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES: 
 
 (a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties: 
                              2020             2019 
                             $’000                 $’000 

(i) Purchase/(sale) of goods and services -  
     IPrint Digital Limited 34,362 56,653 

  Dream Entertainment Limited (  2,671) (  6,861)  
  Betting, Gaming and Lotteries Commission -     (37,534)  
  Mystique Integrated Services Limited (16,227) (13,057)  
  Other related parties 21,854 18,203  
 

(ii)   Rental of property - 
     Lannaman & Morris (Shipping) Limited 16,859 16,346  

 
(iii) Director emoluments - 

                        Fees 1,305 4,883  
                       Management remuneration 16,404 21,783  
 

(iv) Interest paid on related party loan   2,124   4,797  
 

(b)     Year end balances arising from transactions with related parties –  
                                                                                                                     2020              2019 
                            $’000             $’000 

 Due from related parties - 
Mystique Integrated Services Limited 12,791 43,118  
Stimulus Entertainment Limited 492 396  
Ras Promotions Incorporated Limited 678 678  
Other related parties 1,156 -      
Directors      523     -      
 
  15,640 44,192                  
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONT’D): 
 

(b)     Year end balances arising from transactions with related parties (cont’d) –  
 

                                                                                                                      2020              2019 
                             $’000             $’000 

Due to related parties - 
IPrint Digital Limited 4,269 6,498  
Lannaman & Morris (Shipping) Limited 2,662 -        
Directors     -        2,427  
 
    6,931   8,925 
     

(c) US$ loan from related company – 
MEEG Holdings Limited   20,245 33,115 
   

 
This balance represents amounts advanced by parent company, MEEG Holdings Limited.  
The loan is unsecured with no fixed repayment date and attracts an annual interest rate of 
8.34%.       
   

 
17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
 

(a) For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at 
bank and in hand net of bank overdraft. 
 

 2020 2019 
 $’000 $’000 

 
Cash and bank balances 132,250 67,409  
Bank overdraft (      127) (44,658)  
 
 132,123 22,751  

 
(b) The company has bank overdraft facilities totaling $30 million (2019 – $30 million) which 

attracts interest at 12% (2019 – 12%). 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

                                            Page 42 
MAIN EVENT ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
31 OCTOBER 2020 

 
 
17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’D): 

 
(c) Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:  

 Amounts represent bank and other loans, excluding bank overdraft. 
 
  2020            2019 
  $’000       $’000     
 

At 1 November 172,396 126,315  
Loans received  -      70,978  
Loans repaid  (  28,080) ( 25,215)  
Unrealised foreign exchange loss         802       318  

     
   145,118 172,396  
 
18. SHARE CAPITAL:  
 
                        2020              2019  
                       $’000               $’000    
 Authorised - 
              320,004,000 ordinary shares of no par value  
 Stated capital -  
 Issued and fully paid -  
  300,005,000 ordinary shares of no par value  103,652 103,652  
 
 
19. LONG TERM LOANS: 
  2020 2019 

 $’000    $’000    
 

(i) National Commercial Bank    
Amortised loans 21,943 22,730   
 

(ii) Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited - 
USD loans 123,095 143,615  
 

(iii) Other loans         80    6,051  
 
             Total loan balances  145,118 172,396  
 
             Current portion of loans (  38,760) (  34,588)  
  
             Long term portion of loans 106,358 137,808  
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19. LONG TERM LOANS (CONT’D): 

 
(i) National Commercial Bank – 
 

This loan was used to purchase commercial property.  The loan bears interest of 11% 
per annum and is repayable over 180 months.  The loan is secured by first legal 
mortgage over commercial property registered at Volume 1512 Folio 618 and peril 
insurance with the bank interest noted. 
 

(ii) Sagicor Bank loans – 
 

The loans were secured to facilitate capital expenditure and attract an average interest 
rate of 6.75-12.77% per annum.  The loans are secured against a deposit “A” account 
and corporate guarantee in the name of MEEG Holding Limited, company’s interest 
bearing account held at Sagicor Bank Limited. 

 
(iii) Other loans – 

 
This represents a credit card facility that is unsecured and is payable on demand.  
Interest is charged at a rate of 21.95% on the unpaid balance that exists after the due 
date for payment.  The facility is used only to settle tax obligations.  
 

20. LEASES:        
 
 The company adopted IFRS 16 as at 1 November 2019: 
 

(i) Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position 
 
  The statement of financial position shows the following amount relating to leases: 
 
                2020     2019 

   $’000              $’000 
Right-of-use assets   
Buildings  54,808 -      
 
Property, plant and equipment    
Motor vehicles acquired under finance lease  19,766 24,221 
 
  74,574 24,221  
 
Lease liabilities 
Current portion  25,118 6,359 
Non-current portion   49,358 17,916 
 

     74,476 24,275 
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20. LEASES (CONT’D):        

 
(ii) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss: 

 
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amount relating to leases:  

 
  2020 2019 
  $’000 $’000 

 Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets   
  Buildings  20,699 -     

Motor vehicles     4,456 6,252 
 
  25,155 6,252 
 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:  
  

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability  
 

- any lease payments made at the commencement date less any lease incentives received  
  

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis. If 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is 
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.   
 
In the previous year, the company only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities in 
relation to leases that were classified as ‘finance leases’ under IAS 17 Leases. The assets 
were presented in property, plant and equipment and the liabilities as finance lease 
obligations.   

 
21. PAYABLES:    
  2020 2019 

 $’000    $’000    
  
 Trade payables 39,103 103,696     
 GCT payables 451 13,351    
 Deferred income -     10,954    
 Statutory payables 2,930 9,122                  
 Accruals and other payables 31,129   30,358                
 
   73,613 167,481 
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22. EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 

The company has adopted IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, for the financial year ended 31 October 2020 which 
resulted in a change in the company’s accounting policies. The standard is adopted 
retrospectively from 1 November 2019, however the company has chosen not to restate 
comparatives and therefore, the revised requirements are not reflected in the prior year 
financial statements. The new accounting policies are disclosed in note 3(i). Details of the 
impact of this standard are given below. 
 
Effective 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 has replaced IAS 17, ‘Leases’, and IFRIC 4, Determining 
whether an arrangement contains a lease.  
 
IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and 
liabilities for all leases, together with options to exclude leases where the lease term is 12 
months or less, or where the underlying asset is of low value (US$5,000). IFRS 16 substantially 
carries forward the lessor accounting in IAS 17, with the distinction between operating leases 
and finance leases being retained. 
 
Transition Method and Practical Expedients Utilised  

 
IFRS 16 provides for certain optional practical expedients, including those related to the initial 
adoption of the standard. The company applied the following practical expedients when 
applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17: 
 
(a) Apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar 

characteristics; 
 

(b) Exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of 
initial application for leases where the right-of-use asset was determined as if IFRS 16 
had been applied since the commencement date; 
 

(c) Reliance on previous assessments of whether leases are onerous as opposed to 
preparing an impairment review under IAS 36 as at the date of initial application; and 
 

(d) Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with 
less than 12 months of lease term remaining as of the date of initial application. 

 
(e) Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to 

extend or terminate the lease. 
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22. EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D): 
 

Transition Method and Practical Expedients Utilised (cont’d)  
 
As a lessee, the company previously classified leases as finance based on its assessment of 
whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Under 
IFRS 16, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability for most leases. 
However, the company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for 
some leases of low value assets based on the value of the underlying asset when new or for 
short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. 
 
On adoption of IFRS 16, the company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as 
follows: 
 

Classification under                              Classification under IFRS 16 
IAS 17 Right-of-use asset Lease liability   

Finance lease measured 
based on the carrying 

Measured at an amount 
equal to the lease 
liability, adjusted by 
the amount of any 
prepaid or accrued 
lease payments. 

Measured at the present value of the 
remaining lease payments, 
discounted using the company's 
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 
November 2019. The company's 
incremental borrowing rate is the 
rate at which a similar borrowing 
could be obtained from an 
independent creditor under 
comparable terms and conditions. 
The weighted average rate applied 
was 10%. 

values for the lease assets 
and liabilities immediately 
before the date of initial 
application.  
  
  
  
  
  
 

   
 

23. DIVIDEND PAID: 
   2020     2019   
           $’000       $’000 
 
              In respect of 31 October 2018 ($0.09¢ per share) 27,001   -      
              In respect of 31 October 2017 ($0.06¢ per share)     -      18,000 
 
 27,001 18,000 
 

By resolution dated 20 February 2020 dividend payment of $0.09¢ per share was approved by 
the Board of directors.  



               FORM OF PROXY

I/We _____________________________________________________________________ [insert name] 

of ______________________________________________________________________[address]

being a shareholder(s) of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:

_____________________________________________________________________[proxy name]

of _____________________________________________________________________ [address]

or failing him, _________________________________________________________________ [alternate proxy] 

of _____________________________________________________________________ [address]

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at ***TBD*** • Kingston 5 on 
Tuesday, July 27, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof. 

This Form is to be used as instructed. Unless otherwise instructed the Proxy will vote as he/she thinks fit. Please tick appropriate box.

 

Signed this     __________ day of _____________________________________ 2021 

Print Name:   

________________________________________Signature:_________________________________________________________ 

NOTES:

1. When completed, this Form of Proxy must be received by the Registrar of the Company, Jamaica Central Securities Depository, 40 
Harbour Street, Kingston, Jamaica, W.I. not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting.

2.The Proxy Form should bear stamp duty of $100.00 which may be adhesive and duly cancelled by the persons signing the proxy form.

* If the appointer is a Corporation, this Form of Proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney 
duly authorised in writing. 
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